

Basic Estimate Tables

CHIS 2017/2018 Tables of Selected Child Variables

Final Deliverable February 10, 2021



Contents

CHIS 2017-2018 Basic Estimate Tables	5
Talk.Read.Sing [®]	7
Kit for New Parents	11
Parental Involvement in School Readiness	15
Development Screening	
Referrals	23
Childcare	26
Dental	
Diet	
Other	

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Saw or heard messages about Talk.Read.Sing®, parents of children ages 0-5, California 2017-20187
Table 2. Talked with child more after hearing Talk.Read.Sing [®] messages, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018 ¹
Table 3. Read with child more after hearing Talk.Read.Sing® messages, children ages 0-5, California2017-20181
Table 4. Sang with child more after hearing Talk.Read.Sing® messages, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018110
Table 5. Children ages 0-11 with a parent who knew about the Kit for New Parents, California, 2017-2018
Table 6. Ever received the Kit for New Parents, children ages 0-11 with a parent who knew about the Kitfor New Parents, California, 2017-2018112
Table 7. Received the Kit for New Parents in the past 12 months, children ages 0-11 with a parent whoever received the Kit, California 2017-201813
Table 8. Used materials from the Kit for New Parents, children ages 0-11 with a parent who received theKit in the past 12 months, California 2017-201814
Table 9. Average rating of the usefulness of the Kit for New Parents, children ages 0-11 whose parentused the Kit in the past year, California 2017-20181
Table 10. Family member reads or looks at picture books with child every day in a usual week, childrenages 0-5, California 2017-201815
Table 11. Family member sings or listens to music with child every day in a usual week, children ages 0-5, California 2017-201816
Table 12. Family member takes child out somewhere every day in a usual week, children ages 0-5,California 2017-2018
Table 13. Doctor or other professional ever did an assessment of the child's development, children ages1-5, California 2017-2018
Table 14. Doctor or other professional ever asked parent about developmental concerns, children ages1-5, California 2017-2018
Table 15. Parent ever completed checklist of child's developmental activities, children ages 1-5,California 2017-2018
Table 16. Parent ever completed checklist of developmental concerns, children ages 1-5, California2017-201821
Table 17. Doctor or other provider had a child roll-over and pick up an object, children ages 1-5,California 2017-2018

Table 18. Professional ever noted concern that should be monitored, children ages 1-5, California 2017-101823
Table 19. Ever referred to specialist regarding development, children ages 1-5, California 2017-201824
Table 20. Ever referred for speech, language or hearing testing, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018
Table 21. Has regular childcare 10 or more hours per week, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018 26
Table 22. Average number of hours in childcare, children ages 0-5 in childcare 10+hours per week,children ages 0-5 years26
Table 23. Type of childcare, children ages 0-5 in childcare 10+ hours per week ¹ , California 2017-201827
Table 24. Unmet need for childcare, children ages 0-5
Table 25. Dental visit past year, children ages 0-5 with teeth, , California 2017-2018
Table 26. Visited dentist before age 4, children ages 4 years and older, California 2017-2018
Table 27. Reason for not visiting a dentist in the past 12 months, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California2017-201829
Table 28. Delayed needed dental care, past 12 months, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-201830
Table 29. Current dental insurance, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-2018
Table 30. Ever used free community or public dental care programs, children ages 0-5 with teeth,California 2017-2018
Table 31. Could not afford needed dental care, past 12 months, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California2017-201832
Table 33. Missed school due to dental problem, past 12 months, children age 5 and older who attendschool, California 2017-201832
Table 33. Ever breastfed or fed breastmilk, children ages 0-3, California 2017-2018
Table 34. Age (months) when child stopped breastfeeding and age (months) initiated solid foods,children ages 0-3 who were breastfed, California 2017-2018
Table 35. Ate at least five servings of fruits and vegetables previous day, children ages 2-5, California2017-201834
Table 36. Sugary drink consumption yesterday, children ages 2-5, California 2017-2018
Table 37. Soda consumption yesterday, children ages 2-5, California 2017
Table 38. Prescription medication and special therapy, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018
Table 39. Did volunteer work, past 12 months, parents of children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018 36

CHIS 2017-2018 Basic Estimate Tables

California Health Interview Survey (CHIS) is a large omnibus health survey, with approximately 20,000 households participating each year. Respondents are adults age 18 and older, parents of children ages 0-11 years, and adolescents ages 12-17 years. Data for this report is from the 2017-2018 survey cycle. In the 2017-2018 cycle, CHIS was conducted as a random-digit-dial survey of the non-institutionalized California civilian population.

This report presents data for variables *funded by or of interest* to First 5 California for children five years of age and younger (except where noted). Data estimates were generated by staff from the CHIS Data Access Center. Data years were combined for analysis and results weighted to the general population to adjust for sampling design and bias. Weights are based on the State of California's Department of Finance population estimates and projections for the targeted years. More information about CHIS and CHIS methodology is available at <u>www.chis.ucla.edu</u>.

How to Read the Tables

Report tables show weighted percents or means (for continuous variables), 95% confidence intervals, and population estimates. Except where noted, the first column of the tables shows the demographic group of interest-poverty level, parent's education, race/ethnicity, citizenship status, and dual-language learner. The poverty level is based on federal poverty levels and calculated using household income and the number of people supported by that income. Race/ethnicity categories are mutually exclusive and based on California Department of Finance categories. Dual language learners are children exposed to a language other than or in addition to English in the home.

The column labeled *percent* shows the weighted percent for CHIS respondents who report the health condition or behavior. The next two columns show the lower and upper limits of the 95% confidence interval for that percent. The *population estimate* column, displays the estimated number of Californians in each demographic group who have the health condition or behavior described in the table title. Population estimates are rounded to the nearest thousand.

Statistically unstable estimates are marked (^a) and should be interpreted with caution. Analysis of the coefficient of variation (CV) determines the data's statistical stability, using a criterion of less than 30%. Dark blue empty cells indicate data suppression due to small cell size (n<3) or a weighted population less than 500.

Funder Information

This report was made possible by funds from First 5 California, a state commission committed to ensuring that California's children receive the best possible start in life and thrive. First 5 California is a funder of the CHIS child questionnaire.

Talk.Read.Sing[®]

Table 1. Saw or heard messages about Talk.Read.Sing®, parents of children ages 0-5, California 2017-
2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
TOTAL	86.7	83.0	90.4	2,563,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	82.4	74.4	90.4	551,000
100-199% FPL	86.1	78.6	93.6	525,000
200-299% FPL	83.5	72.3	94.7	348,000
300% FPL and Above	90.3	85.8	94.8	1,140,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	79.4	68.4	90.3	358,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	84.4	76.7	92.2	598,000
>12 Years	90.1	86.3	93.8	1,596,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	86.3	80.9	91.6	1,364,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	90.0 ^a	83.9	96.1	705,000
African American Only, NH	90.2 ^ª	76.3	100.0	109,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	22.5ª	0.0	74.4	3,000
Asian Only, NH	81.5 ^a	68.7	94.3	265,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	88.0 ^a	72.9	100.0	111,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	89.7	85.6	93.8	1,403,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	81.7	73.2	90.2	512,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	90.4	81.1	99.6	287,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	83.1	71.8	94.3	324,000
Child is Noncitizen	65.0 ^a	25.7	100.0	37,000
Dual Language Learner	84.3	79.1	89.5	1,424,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

		LOWER	UPPER	Population
	PERCENT	95% CI	95% CI	Estimate
TOTAL	44.1	40.0	48.3	1,130,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	53.1	42.0	64.1	292,000
100-199% FPL	53.1	41.6	64.6	279,000
200-299% FPL	40.4	28.3	52.6	140,000
300% FPL and Above	36.7	30.5	43.0	712, 000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	60.7	43.5	77.8	217,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	55.1	43.6	66.6	329,000
>12 Years	36.4	30.9	41.9	581,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	48.7	42.2	55.2	664,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	28.0	19.8	36.2	197,000
African American Only, NH	45.4 ^a	16.2	74.6	50,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	24.3ª	0.0	76.7	1,000
Asian Only, NH	64.6	45.3	83.9	171,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	42.3	23.5	61.0	47,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	34.2	28.6	39.8	480,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	55.2	43.1	67.3	283,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	57.7	40.7	74.8	166,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	53.4	37.4	69.5	173,000
Child is Noncitizen	77.9	36.4	100.0	29,000
Dual Language Learner	55.5	49.3	61.8	791,000

Table 2. Talked with child more after hearing Talk.Read.Sing[®] messages, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018¹

¹Asked of parents who had ever heard **Talk.Read.Sing**[®] messages

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
TOTAL	38.1	33.7	42.5	977,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	41.6	30.7	52.6	229,000
100-199% FPL	45.5	33.3	57.7	239,000
200-299% FPL	39.1	26.2	51.9	136,000
300% FPL and Above	32.7	26.8	38.7	373,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	43.5	27.4	59.7	156,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	44.9	33.9	55.9	269,000
>12 Years	34.5	28.9	40.1	550,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	38.7	31.9	45.5	528,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	27.6	18.5	36.8	195,000
African American Only, NH	41.5 ^a	3.4	79.5	45,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	26.6ª	0.0	82.1	1,000
Asian Only, NH	61.1	40.8	81.4	162,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	41.5	21.0	62.0	46,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	30.7	23.4	38.1	431,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	44.2	30.7	57.7	226,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	53.5	38.0	69.1	154,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	43.7	28.2	59.3	141,000
Child is Noncitizen	65.8ª	23.9	100.0	24,000
Dual Language Learner	46.4	39.2	53.6	661,000

Table 3. Read with child more after hearing Talk.Read.Sing® messages, children ages 0-5, California	
2017-2018 ¹	

¹Asked of parents who had ever heard **Talk.Read.Sing**[®] messages

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	39.7	35.0	44.5	1,017,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	52.1	40.5	63.7	287,000
100-199% FPL	46.8	35.0	58.6	245,000
200-299% FPL	39.3	26.6	52.0	137,000
300% FPL and Above	30.5	23.3	37.8	348,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	59.0	44.3	73.6	211,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	48.0	36.8	59.1	287,000
>12 Years	32.4	25.8	38.9	516,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	44.0	37.3	50.6	599,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	27.4	19.3	35.4	193,000
African American Only, NH	46.2 ^a	16.3	76.1	50,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	34.6 ^a	0.0	100.0	1,000
Asian Only, NH	51.0	34.3	67.8	135,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH		•	•	
Two Or More Races, NH	33.9 ^a	12.0	55.8	38,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	29.9	23.3	36.4	419,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	48.0	35.8	60.3	246,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	52.6	34.4	70.8	151,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	52.7	36.9	68.6	171,000
Child is Noncitizen	82.1	46.5	100.0	30,000
Dual Language Learner	49.8	43.3	56.3	709,000

Table 4. Sang with child more after hearing Talk.Read.Sing[®] messages, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018¹

¹Asked of parents who had ever heard Talk.Read.Sing[®] messages

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Kit for New Parents

Table 5. Children ages 0-11 with a parent who knew about the Kit for New Parents, California, 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	39.8	35.9	43.7	2,417,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	35.1	23.5	46.6	458,000
100-199% FPL	42.0	34.0	50.1	526,000
200-299% FPL	36.2	27.8	44.7	296,000
300% FPL and Above	42.2	37.7	46.8	1,137,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	33.2	24.3	42.2	335,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	36.9	29.7	44.2	481,000
>12 Years	43.0	38.7	47.3	1,586,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	36.9	32.0	41.7	1,166,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	44.9	37.6	52.2	726,000
African American Only, NH	40.5	21.0	59.9	136,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	40.2 ^a	0.0	85.1	9,000
Asian Only, NH	40.9	30.3	51.4	264,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	41.4	27.4	55.3	110,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	42.8	38.2	47.4	1,323,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	41.3	33.0	49.6	577,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	37.3	26.6	47.9	229,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	33.4	24.2	42.6	266,000
Child is Noncitizen	13.2 ^ª	0.0	28.3	21,000
Dual Language Learner	36.4	31.5	41.3	1,183,000

¹ Questions about the Kit for New Parents are asked of all parents and are not specific to the selected child.

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	59.7	54.0	65.4	1,443,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	64.1	50.1	78.1	294,000
100-199% FPL	64.9	52.8	77.0	341,000
200-299% FPL	66.8	53.2	80.3	197,000
300% FPL and Above	53.7	47.0	60.4	611,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	62.4	46.4	78.4	209,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	66.9	54.0	79.9	322,000
>12 Years	57.1	50.4	63.8	906,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	63.5	55.1	71.8	740,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	56.5	48.2	64.9	411,000
African American Only, NH	48.0	25.4	70.7	65,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	47.7 ^a	0.0	100.0	4,000
Asian Only, NH	57.9	40.3	75.5	153,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	63.4	38.7	88.1	70,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	60.2	53.1	67.4	797,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	58.2	45.4	71.0	336,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	59.0	42.0	76.1	135,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	59.7	43.0	76.5	159,000
Child is Noncitizen	76.0 ^ª	21.0	100.0	16,000
Dual Language Learner	61.9	54.1	69.8	733,000

Table 6. Ever received the Kit for New Parents, children ages 0-11 with a parent who knew about the Kit for New Parents, California, 2017-2018¹

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	15.3	9.7	21.0	221,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	19.0 ^a	0.1	37.9	56,000
100-199% FPL	18.8ª	4.2	33.4	64,000
200-299% FPL	10.2 ^ª	0.0	22.6	20,000
300% FPL and Above	13.3	5.7	20.9	81,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	23.5 ª	5.2	41.8	49,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	14.6 ^ª	1.5	27.7	47,000
>12 Years	13.8	7.4	20.3	125,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	18.6	10.4	26.9	138,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	6.6	0.0	13.2	27,000
African American Only, NH	32.8 ^a	0.0	77.9	21,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	23.9 ^a	0.0	100.0	1,000
Asian Only, NH	20.5 ^a	0.0	41.0	31,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	3.9 ^a	0.0	10.8	3,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	8.3 ^a	3.1	13.4	66,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	17.5 ^ª	4.8	30.3	59,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	20.0 ^a	0.0	41.4	27,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	41.7	18.4	64.9	66,000
Child is Noncitizen				
Dual Language Learner	22.0	13.6	30.4	161,000

Table 7. Received the Kit for New Parents in the past 12 months, children ages 0-11 with a parent who ever received the Kit, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Table 8. Used materials from the Kit for New Parents, children ages 0-11 with a parent who received the Kit in the past 12 months, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
TOTAL	83.3	70.3	96.3	184,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	91.0	72.7	100.0	51,000
100-199% FPL	96.1	84.6	100.0	62,000
200-299% FPL	78.0 ^a	19.1	100.0	16,000
300% FPL and Above	69.2	44.5	93.9	56,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	77.6	39.7	100.0	38,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	96.2	85.7	100.0	45,000
>12 Years	80.7	63.6	97.8	101,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	85.0	71.2	98.8	117,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	66.6 ^ª	15.1	100.0	18,000
African American Only, NH	84.1ª	31.0	100.0	18,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH				
Asian Only, NH	91.2	65.8	100.0	28,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH				
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	71.4	46.0	96.8	47,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	99.7	98.6	100.0	59,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	73.5	19.0	100.0	20,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	88.8	69.0	100.0	59,000
Child is Noncitizen				
Dual Language Learner	91.0	78.6	100.0	147,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 9. Average rating of the usefulness of the Kit for New Parents, children ages 0-11 whose parent used the Kit in the past year, California 2017-2018¹

	LOWER	UPPER
Mean	95% CI	95% CI
8.7	8.2	9.2

¹CHIS asks parent respondents to rate the usefulness of the Kit for New Parents on a scale of 1 (least useful) to 10 (most useful) Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Parental Involvement in School Readiness

Table 10. Family member reads or looks at picture books with child every day in a usual week, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
Total	65.3	59.8	70.6	1,929,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	55.5	43.1	68.0	372,000
100-199% FPL	56.8	45.5	68.1	346,000
200-299% FPL	60.2	47.1	73.2	251,000
300% FPL and Above	76.2	68.6	83.9	961,000
Parents Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	49.2	33.6	64.9	222,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	57.7	48.2	67.1	409,000
>12 Years	72.8	64.8	80.8	1,289,000
Race/Ethnicity				
Hispanic	54.9	47.5	62.2	867,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	86.3	78.6	94.1	677,000
African American Only, NH	55.6	31.4	79.8	67,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	71.8ª	0.0	100.0	9,000
Asian Only, Non-Hispanic	62.0	45.7	78.4	202,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	84.5	69.3	99.7	107,000
Citizenship Status				
Child Citizen, Both Parents US-Born	72.4	65.9	78.8	1,133,000
Child Citizen, Parent Naturalized	63.2	52.0	74.5	397,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	61.1	44.1	78.0	194,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	46.5	32.4	60.5	181,000
Child is Noncitizen	44.4 ^a	0.0	95.8	25,000
Dual Language Learner	56.3	49.9	62.8	952,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

LOWER	UPPER	Population
95% CI	95% CI	Estimate
67.8	8 76.6	2,134,000
60.9	9 82.5	480,000
53.9	9 75.9	395,000
60.9	9 87.1	308,000
69.3	3 81.5	951,000
50.0	76.9	286,000
58.5	5 78.9	487,000
71.3	8 81.2	1,351,000
60.4	4 73.8	1,061,000
79.5	5 90.2	665,000
56.7	7 98.0	94,000
69.7	7 100.0	12,000
42.3	3 81.9	202,000
56.6	5 93.0	94,000
73.5	5 84.5	1,237,000
59.8	8 78.0	432,000
48.6	5 77.3	200,000
50.3	3 77.4	249,000
0.0	59.9	16,000
6 03		1,133,000
	60.9	60.9 73.2

Table 11. Family member sings or listens to music with child every day in a usual week, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Total	40.9	34.9	<u>95% CI</u> 46.8	1,207,000
	40.9	54.9	40.8	1,207,000
Federal Poverty Level	10.4	20.6	53.3	270.000
0-99% FPL	40.4	28.6	52.2	270,000
100-199% FPL	38.2	26.9	49.5	233,000
200-299% FPL	47.6	33.3	62.0	198,000
300% FPL and Above	40.1	33.7	46.6	506,000
Parents Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	39.6	25.1	54.1	179,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	38.9	27.3	50.5	275,000
>12 Years	41.9	35.4	48.4	743,000
Race/Ethnicity				
Hispanic	40.0	32.9	47.1	633,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	46.6	37.5	55.7	365,000
African American Only, NH	35.5 ^ª	0.3	70.6	43,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	42.7 ^a	0.0	100.0	6,000
Asian Only, Non-Hispanic	33.4	17.1	49.7	109,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	41.3	22.7	59.9	52,000
Citizenship Status				
Child Citizen, Both Parents US-Born	42.4	34.9	49.8	663,000
Child Citizen, Parent Naturalized	36.9	24.8	49.0	231,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	40.1	25.5	54.6	127,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	44.7	28.8	60.5	174,000
Child is Noncitizen	20.4 ^a	0.0	52.7	12,000
				,
Dual Language Learner	39.9	32.3	47.4	673,000

Table 12. Family member takes child out somewhere every day in a usual week, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Development Screening

Table 13. Doctor or other professional ever assessed the child's development, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018

		LOWER	UPPER	Population
	PERCENT	95% CI	95% CI	Estimate
TOTAL	71.1	66.3	76.0	1,761,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	54.9	41.9	67.9	320,000
100-199% FPL	67.7	56.4	79.0	321,000
200-299% FPL	70.9	58.2	83.7	254,000
300% FPL and Above	81.7	76.0	87.4	866,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	55.8	39.1	72.6	196,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	62.1	50.7	73.6	359,000
>12 Years	78.0	72.3	83.7	1,188,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	65.6	58.5	72.7	856,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	80.3	71.1	89.5	538,000
African American Only, NH	57.3 ^a	19.2	95.5	65,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	97.7	88.5	100.0	13,000
Asian Only, NH	78.3 ^a	61.2	95.4	199,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	74.0 ^ª	51.6	76.5	84,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	74.8	68.8	80.8	1,002,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	77.7	68.1	87.3	407,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	71.2	56.0	86.3	169,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	47.6	31.0	64.1	151,000
Child is Noncitizen	55.0 ^a	0.4	100.0	31,000
Dual Language Learner	67.1	59.8	74.4	943,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	65.5	60.7	70.3	1,622,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	55.4	44.1	66.7	323,000
100-199% FPL	63.3	52.4	74.2	301,000
200-299% FPL	69.7	57.5	81.9	250,000
300% FPL and Above	70.6	62.8	78.5	749,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	49.6	34.6	64.7	174,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	63.3	53.2	73.5	366,000
>12 Years	70.6	64.8	76.4	1,075,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	64.4	57.8	71.1	840,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	73.7	64.8	82.6	494,000
African American Only, NH	44.8 ^a	9.9	79.7	51,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	62.7ª	0	100.0	8,000
Asian Only, NH	36.7ª	11.4	62.0	161,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	58.2	39.4	77.1	66,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	68.5	62.2	74.8	918,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	67.2	56.8	77.6	352,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	55.4	36.2	74.5	132,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	57.8	41.8	73.7	184,000
Child is Noncitizen	65.4ª	21.7	100.0	37,000
Dual Language Learner	62.0	54.8	69.2	

Table 14. Doctor or other professional ever asked parent about developmental concerns, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
TOTAL	-			
	63.6	57.6	69.6	1,574,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	59.4	48.3	70.4	346,000
100-199% FPL	63.7	51.2	76.2	303,000
200-299% FPL	66.9	54.9	78.8	239,000
300% FPL and Above	64.8	56.3	73.3	686,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	60.1	44.6	75.5	210,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	61.9	49.2	74.6	358,000
>12 Years	65.6	59.0	72.2	999,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	64.2	57.2	71.2	838,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	64.2	55.8	72.5	430,000
African American Only, NH	55.3ª	16.4	94.1	63,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH				
Asian Only, NH	62.3	36.2	88.4	159,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	63.2	42.6	83.9	72,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	64.6	57.4	71.8	865,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	71.9	58.2	85.6	376,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	28.1	14.5	41.8	136,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	57.3	39.9	74.7	151,000
Child is Noncitizen	47.5	30.2	64.8	45,000
Dual Language Learner	65.2	57.7	72.7	916,000

Table 15. Parent ever completed checklist of child's developmental activities, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	DEDCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
7074	PERCENT			
TOTAL	56.3	50.3	62.3	1,393,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	52.5	40.8	64.1	306,000
100-199% FPL	58.5	47.6	69.4	278,000
200-299% FPL	58.0	45.1	70.8	207,000
300% FPL and Above	56.9	47.8	65.9	603,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	45.4	29.5	61.3	159,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	58.0	46.5	69.5	335,000
>12 Years	58.6	51.8	65.5	893,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	53.5	45.5	61.5	698,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	58.3	50.0	66.6	391,000
African American Only, NH	60.3ª	20.3	100.0	69,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	71.7 ^a	0.0	100	9,000
Asian Only, NH	63.5	37.9	89.1	162,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	56.8	35.9	77.7	65,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	57.8	50.3	65.3	774,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	58.3	44.2	72.5	305,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	54.5	38.1	70.8	129,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	46.7	31.0	62.4	149,000
Child is Noncitizen	63.8 ª	9.6	100.0	36,000
Dual Language Learner	55.6	47.7	63.5	781,000

Table 16. Parent ever completed checklist of developmental concerns, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

		LOWER	UPPER	Population
	PERCENT	95% CI	95% CI	Estimate
TOTAL	67.4	62.1	72.7	1,669,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	63.3	53.3	73.4	369,000
100-199% FPL	67.8	56.9	78.6	322,000
200-299% FPL	64.9	53.6	76.2	232,000
300% FPL and Above	70.4	62.1	78.7	746,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	64.6	49.8	79.4	226,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	62.1	51.0	73.3	359,000
>12 Years	70.6	64.6	76.5	1,074,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	66.4	59.3	73.4	866,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	68.8	60.7	76.9	462,000
African American Only, NH	55.2ª	27.5	83.0	63,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	99.8	98.9	100	13,000
Asian Only, NH	74.2ª	55.1	93.4	189,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	67.3ª	47.2	87.5	77,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	67.1	61.0	73.2	899,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	74.2	61.5	86.9	388,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	67.2	50.2	84.2	160,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	53.4	38.1	68.8	170,000
Child is Noncitizen	91.5ª	76.6	100.0	52,000
Dual Language Learner	64.9	56.1	73.6	911,000

Table 17. Doctor or other provider had a child roll-over and pick up an object, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Referrals

Table 18. Professional ever noted concern that should be monitored, children ages 1-5, California 2017-1018

1018	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	14.3	10.9	17.7	350,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	15.5	6.9	24.0	87,000
100-199% FPL	9.9ª	3.2	16.5	47,000
200-299% FPL	18.7	8.6	28.9	66,000
300% FPL and Above	14.2	9.3	19.1	150,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	5.2ª	0.0	11.6	17,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	16.5	8.1	25.0	95,000
>12 Years	15.6	11.3	19.9	235,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	13.7	8.8	18.6	176,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	18.7	11.7	25.7	125,000
African American Only, NH	2.3 ^a	0.0	6.4	3,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH				
Asian Only, NH	13.2ª	1.4	25.1	34,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	11.5 ^a	0.0	24.8	13,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	15.4	11.0	19.8	204,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	14.9	6.7	23.1	77,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	13.8ª	0.7	26.9	33,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	8.5 ^a	0.0	17.6	26,000
Child is Noncitizen				
Dual Language Learner	13.4	9.1	17.8	186,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	12.6	9.0	16.1	311,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	13.7ª	3.7	23.6	80,000
100-199% FPL	12.5 ^ª	3.8	21.2	60,000
200-299% FPL	13.6ª	4.7	22.5	49,000
300% FPL and Above	11.6	7.3	16.0	123,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	7.2ª	0.0	15.0	25,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	9.4 ^a	2.8	16.1	54,000
>12 Years	15.0	10.4	19.6	229,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	11.6	7.1	16.0	151,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	16.4	9.2	23.6	110,000
African American Only, NH	2.0ª	0.0	5.4	2,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH				
Asian Only, NH	12.1 ^ª	0.0	24.7	31,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	13.4ª	0.0	30.7	15,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	15.0	9.8	20.3	201,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	9.5 ^a	2.7	16.3	50,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	13.5 ^a	0.0	27.4	32,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	6.7 ^ª	0.0	14.9	21,000
Child is Noncitizen				
Dual Language Learner	11.8	7.1	16.4	165,000

Table 19. Ever referred to a specialist regarding development, children ages 1-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30% Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
TOTAL	18.2	13.3	23.0	449,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	21.42	12.41	30.43	125,000
100-199% FPL	21.94	11.89	31.99	104,000
200-299% FPL	17.45 ^a	6.81	28.1	62,000
300% FPL and Above	14.88	8.94	20.81	158,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	22.2	10.7	33.7	78,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	16.9ª	6.7	27.1	98,000
>12 Years	17.5	11.7	23.3	267,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	22.2	15.1	29.3	289,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	18.4	11.0	25.9	123,000
African American Only, NH	7.2 ^a	0.0	18.8	8,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	41.3 ^a	0.0	100.0	5,000
Asian Only, NH	6.1ª	0.0	14.2	16,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	6.3 ^a	0.3	12.3	7,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	16.7	10.9	22.5	224,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	19.1	8.9	29.3	100,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	26.2 ^ª	10.7	41.8	62,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	15.0ª	5.1	24.8	48,000
Child is Noncitizen	27.2ª	0.0	63.0	15,000
Dual Language Learner	18.0	11.9	24.1	252,000

Table 20 Ever referred for a	nooch languago or h	opring testing children	n ages 1-5, California 2017-2018
Table 20. Lver referreu for S	peech, language of h	earing testing, trinuien	1 ages 1-5, California 2017-2010

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30% Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Childcare

Table 21. Has regular childcare 10 or more hours per week, children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
Total	40.1	34.8	45.4	1,186,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	17.7	9.5	25.9	118,000
100-199% FPL	20.4	9.9	30.9	124,000
200-299% FPL	40.5	27.5	53.6	169,000
300% FPL and Above	61.4	53.9	69.0	775,000
Parents Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	14.8ª	5.4	24.2	67,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	23.7	15.3	32.2	168,000
>12 Years	53.4	46.4	60.4	945,000
Race/Ethnicity				
Hispanic	31.2	21.4	41.1	494,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	52.0	43.6	60.4	408,000
African American Only, NH	39.3 ^a	13.8	64.9	48,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	58.5 ^ª	0.0	100.0	8,000
Asian Only, Non-Hispanic	48.0	30.5	65.6	156,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	58.0	34.8	81.3	73,000
Citizenship Status				
Child Citizen, Both Parents US-Born	46.3	38.6	54.0	724,000
Child Citizen, Parent Naturalized	36.7	26.8	46.6	230,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	34.2	20.9	47.6	109,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	22.0 ^a	8.9	35.2	86,000
Child is Noncitizen	66.2ª	28.5	100.0	37,000
Dual Language Learner	31.0	23.5	38.5	523,000
Estimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=	200/			

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 22. Average number of hours in childcare, children ages 0-5 in childcare 10+hours per week, children ages 0-5 years

Mean	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI
31.1	29.5	32.6

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Grandparent/Other Family Member	18.5	11.9	25.1	211,000
Head Start/State Program	2.0 ^a	00	4.0	22,000
Preschool or Nursery School	1.4 ^a	0 - 2.9	2.9	16,000
Childcare Center	4.3 ^a	1.2	7.4	50,000
Non-Family Member in Child's Home	3.4 ^a	0.9	5.9	39,000
Non-Family Member in Caretaker's Home	9.2	4.9	13.4	104,000
Other Single Source	3.1 ^a	0.4	5.8	35,000
Combination of Childcare Providers	58.1	50.2	66.1	662,000

Table 23. Type of childcare, children ages 0-5 in childcare 10+ hours per week¹, California 2017-2018

¹Categories are mutually exclusive

^a Estimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 24. Unmet need for childcare, children ages 0-5

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population
Parents Who Could Not Find Childcare for One Week or Longer, Past 12 Months	7.3	4.4	10.1	151,000
Main Reason Unable to Find Childcare (among parents who could not find childcare for a week or longer)				
Could Not Afford	22.95ª	6.47	39.42	41,000
Could Not Find A Provider With A Space	21.54ª	7.77	35.32	39,000
Hours And Location Did Not Fit Needs	1.41ª	0	3.9	3,000
Could Not Afford Quality Childcare Needed	5.6ª	0	17.42	10,000
Could Not Find Quality Childcare Needed	12.07ª	0	24.44	22,000
Other Reason	36.4	16.7	56.2	66,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Dental

Table 25. Dental visit past year, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	68.3	63.5	73.2	852,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	77.6	69.1	86.1	480,000
100-199% FPL	61.6	50.4	72.7	331,000
200-299% FPL	73.7	60.6	86.7	281,000
300% FPL and Above	64.7	57.5	71.9	745,000
Parent's Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	76.5	62.9	90.1	312,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	64.8	54.1	75.5	415,000
>12 Years	67.2	61.6	72.8	1,087,000
Race Ethnicity				
Hispanic	74.78	68.37	81.2	1,058,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	25.22	18.8	31.63	455,000
African American Only, NH	62.25	53.99	70.51	63,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	37.75	29.49	46.01	12,000
Asian Only, NH	54.17	27.57	80.77	167,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	64.23	44.03	84.43	77,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	65.5	58.7	72.3	932,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	76.0	27.7	41.3	433,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	65.6	66.0	85.9	192,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	68.5	14.1	34.0	239,000
Child is Noncitizen	75.6 ^a	18.5	100.0	41,000
Dual Language Learner	71.8	65.4	78.2	1,096,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30% Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% Cl	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
TOTAL	86.0	83.0	89.0	3,543,000

Table 26. Visited dentist before age 4, children ages 4 years and older, California 2017-2018

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 27. Reason for not visiting a dentist in the past 12 months, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-2018

		LOWER	UPPER	Population
	PERCENT	95% CI	95% CI	Estimate
No reason to go/no problems	23.5	16.3	30.8	201,000
Not old enough	46.8	36.7	56.8	398,000
Could not afford/no insurance	2.0*	0	4.7	17,000
Fear, dislikes going	2.4*	0	5.4	20,000
Do not have/know a dentist	1.7*	0	4.5	15,000
Cannot get to the office/clinic	0.1*	0	0.3	1,000
No dentist available/no				
appointments	1.5*	0	3.8	13,000
Didn't know where to go	0.2*	0	0.8	2,000
Hours not convenient	1.0*	0	2.4	8,000
Other	20.76	12.4	29.1	177,000

*Estimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
Delayed needed dental care	4.1	1.8	6.3	109,000
Reasons for delayed care				
Couldn't get appointment	6.2ª	0.0	16.5	7,000
My insurance not accepted	3.9 ^a	0.0	11.4	4,000
Insurance did not cover	6.7 ^a	0.0	20.4	7,000
Transportation problems	2.3 ^a	0.0	7.2	3,000
Hours not convenient	5.7 ^a	0.0	12.7	6,000
No childcare for children at home	13.2 ^a	0.0	32.4	14,000
Forgot or lost referral	0.6 ^a	0.0	2.4	1,000
I didn't have time	12.4 ^a	0.0	30.9	14,000
Couldn't afford/cost too much	3.5 ^a	0.0	7.7	4,000
No insurance	10.4 ^a	0.0	24.6	11,000
Child did not like dentist	3.9 ^a	0.0	17.6	4,000
Other reason	31.2ª	5.6	56.8	34,000

Table 28. Delayed needed dental care, past 12 months, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
Total	85.5	81.8	89.3	2,301,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	82.0	73.4	90.5	507,000
100-199% FPL	83.0	73.5	92.5	447,000
200-299% FPL	86.9 ^a	75.4	98.4	331,000
300% FPL and Above	88.2	83.0	93.4	1,016,000
Parents Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	78.2	65.5	91.0	319,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	79.2	70.4	88.0	507,000
>12 Years	89.7	86.2	93.3	1,451,000
Race/Ethnicity				
Hispanic	85.4	79.8	91.0	1,208,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	85.2	79.4	91.1	622,000
African American Only, NH	89.2ª	67.8	100.0	104,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	83.3 ^a	27.1	100.0	11,000
Asian Only, NH	83.9 ^a	70.4	97.4	242,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	93.6 ^a	84.5	100.0	113,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	87.7	82.8	92.7	1,248,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	85.2	76.6	93.9	486,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	86.4 ^a	75.7	97.2	254,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	76.6 ^ª	62.1	91.0	268,000
Child is Noncitizen	83.9 ^a	43.7	100.0	45,000
Dual Language Learner	82.8	77.2	88.4	1,264,000

Table 29. Current dental insurance,	children ages 0-5 with teeth	California 2017-2018
Table 25. Current acritar insurance,	cillulation ages 0 5 with teeth	

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30% Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 30. Ever used free community or public dental care programs, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Total	6.8	4.2	9.4	185,000

Table 31. Could not afford needed dental care, past 12 months, children ages 0-5 with teeth, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Total	1.4	0.16	2.7	38,000

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 32. Missed school due to dental problem, past 12 months, children age 5 and older who attend school, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Total	4.6	2.9	6.2	160,000

Diet

Table 33. Ever breastfed or fed breastmilk, children ages 0-3, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Total	90.0	85.6	94.5	1,755,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	88.0 ^a	75.6	100.0	413,000
100-199% FPL	88.6 ª	79.2	97.9	370,000
200-299% FPL	83.1 ª	67.2	99.0	233,000
300% FPL and Above	94.6ª	90.3	98.9	739,000
Parents Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	83.2	68.9	97.6	274,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	86.8	77.4	96.2	412,000
>12 Years	93.4	88.5	98.3	1,068,000
Race/Ethnicity				
Hispanic	88.3	81.7	94.8	923,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	93.1 ª	85.9	100.0	464,000
African American Only, NH	97.8 ^ª	93.8	100.0	96,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	94.5 ^ª	73.8	100.0	4,000
Asian Only, Non-Hispanic	86.4ª	72.1	100.0	194,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	95.6 ^ª	89.5	100.0	74,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	89.1	82.9	95.3	909,619
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	85.8ª	72.6	98.9	348,647
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	97.2 ^ª	89.5	100.0	204,855
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	93.4 ^a	84.2	100.0	257,623
Child is Noncitizen	99.9	99.3	100.0	34,007
Dual Language Learner	89.7	82.6	96.8	985,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 34. Age (months) when child stopped breastfeeding and age (months) initiated solid foods, children ages 0-3 who were breastfed, California 2017-2018

		LOWER	UPPER		
	Mean	95% CI	95% CI	Min	Max
Age (months) stopped breastfeeding	9.9	8.9	10.8	1	48
Age (months) initiated solid food	7.0	6.6	7.3	1	24

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Total	32.9	26.8	39.0	658,000
Federal Poverty Level				
0-99% FPL	28.4	17.6	39.1	135,000
100-199% FPL	18.8	9.9	27.8	72,000
200-299% FPL	41.3	25.2	57.4	120,000
300% FPL and Above	39.0	30.5	47.6	332,000
Parents Educational Attainment				
<12 Years	20.5ª	5.8	35.3	64,000
12 Years/High School Diploma	30.4	17.9	43.0	130,000
>12 Years	36.8	29.4	44.2	454,000
Race/Ethnicity				
Hispanic	29.9	21.6	38.2	332,000
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	43.9	33.9	53.9	226,000
African American Only, NH	46.9 ^a	13.6	80.2	30,000
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	37.8 ^a	0.0	100.0	5,000
Asian Only, Non-Hispanic	17.2 ^ª	0.0	35.1	35,000
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH				
Two Or More Races, NH	34.6 ^ª	10.3	58.9	31,000
Citizenship Status				
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	36.2	29.0	43.5	387,000
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	30.5	18.1	42.9	130,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	27.9	12.7	43.2	59,000
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	25.6	10.2	41.0	60,000
Child is Noncitizen	39.0	0.0	98.9	21,000
<u> </u>				
Dual Language Learner	31.6	23.2	39.9	359,000

Table 35. Ate at least five servings of fruits and vegetables previous day, children ages 2-5, California 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

	(One or more sugary drinks, yesterday				
	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate		
Total	32.4	24.9	39.9	648,000		
Federal Poverty Level						
0-99% FPL	39.7	28.3	51.0	188,000		
100-199% FPL	44.3	29.6	59.0	169,000		
200-299% FPL	34.4	18.0	50.7	100,000		
300% FPL and Above	22.4	14.4	30.3	190,000		
Parents Educational Attainment						
<12 Years	45.5	30.3	60.8	142,000		
12 Years/High School Diploma	41.0	27.7	54.2	175,000		
>12 Years	26.6	18.3	35.0	329,000		
Race/Ethnicity						
Hispanic	36.8	28.1	45.6	409,000		
White, Non-Hispanic (NH)	24.5	16.6	32.4	126,000		
African American Only, NH	50.2	16.3	84.1	32,000		
American Indian/Alaska Native Only, NH	17.5 ^a	0.0	62.9	2,000		
Asian Only, Non-Hispanic	23.6 ^a	3.4	43.7	48,000		
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, NH						
Two Or More Races, NH	35.1ª	11.8	58.3	31,000		
Citizenship Status						
Child is Citizen, Both Parents Us-Born	31.7	22.7	40.7	339,000		
Child is Citizen, Parent Naturalized	31.2	17.7	44.7	133,000		
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/ Green Card	32.4 ^a	11.0	53.7	69,000		
Child Citizen-Parent Noncitizen w/o Green Card	41.0	25.0	56.9	96,000		
Child is Noncitizen	19.4 ^a	0.0	51.5	11,000		
Dual Language Learner	34.1	25.2	43.0	389,000		

Table 2C Cusamu duin	le announa intinue u	سلما المامين مامير مرامير		California 2017 2010
Table 36. Sugary drin	k consumption y	/esterday, childr	en ages 2-5, C	alifornia 2017-2018

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30%

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 37. Soda consumption yesterday, children ages 2-5, California 2017

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
One or sodas, yesterday	6.6 ª	2.2	11.0	70,000

^aEstimate statistically unstable, coefficient of variation >=30% Source: 2017California Health Interview Survey

Other

Table 38. Prescription medication	and special therapy, children ages (-5, California 2017-2018
-----------------------------------	--------------------------------------	--------------------------

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% Cl	Population Estimate
Needs or uses prescription medication, children ages 0-5	7.8	5.2	10.5	232,000
Needs prescription medication for a health condition, children ages 0-5 who use prescription medication	73.8	59.1	88.5	171,000
Needs or gets special therapy (physical, occupational, speech therapy), children ages 0-5	6.8	4.5	9.0	200,000

Source: 2017/2018 California Health Interview Survey

Table 39. Did volunteer work, past 12 months, parents of children ages 0-5, California 2017-2018

	PERCENT	LOWER 95% CI	UPPER 95% CI	Population Estimate
Did volunteer work past 12 months	41.5	37.4	45.6	577,000